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ACTION ITEMS FROM THIS MEETING:

MS. GRAVES: After receipt of November 2008 meeting transcript, send request to DTSC for them to respond by the January CAG meeting to Jean Rabovsky’s two to three questions raised during the public comment period (regarding beryllium sulfate.) 

PROCEEDINGS:
MR. ROBINSON:  Good evening.  Welcome to the November CAG normal monthly meeting, and we are going to open it up right now.  Take it away, Kay.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Robinson.  We thought we would try a novel approach and start at the appointed starting time, 6:30.  Thank you for being here.  I am Kay Wallis.  I am very pleased to be your facilitator for this November meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area Community Advisory Group.  

Please help yourself to an agenda and other support materials that are in the back of the room if you have not already.  We also encourage you to get refreshments that are here tonight courtesy of Brooks Street and an anonymous donor.  I would like to do an agenda review and then a process review and then jump right into the business at hand.  

On our agenda, after our opening activities we'll go to our usual DTSC update followed by the Cherokee Simeon Ventures update, and then there will be a joint question and answer period so that representatives from both of those entities can answer questions or comments from the CAG and from the audience as well.  

We'll then move into a brief period for the Nominations Committee of the CAG to do some preparations for their December elections, and then on to a presentation of the OEHHA draft report on beryllium by Dr. Butler.  There will be a question and answer period on the draft report that will include an opportunity for questions from the CAG and the audience.  

We will have a short break then followed by a presentation by the Bio Rad Company.  We will have a question and answer period, again, to include questions from the CAG and from the audience as well.  That will be followed by the Toxics Committee update and the public comment period and then, finally, the wrap up and approval of meeting minutes.  Are there any additional comments or questions about the agenda?  

MR. ROBINSON:  Kay, yes, there is.  At the conclusion of the Tox Com discussion there is a member    a representative from the Harborfront Downwind Association that would like to address both DTSC and the Committee.

MS. WALLIS:  Wonderful.  And I will leave that to Dr. Esposito to make that introduction at the right time. 

MR. ROBINSON:  Please, one more thing, Kay.  A couple of people will be late.  Carolyn Graves is on her way.  Whitney Dotson may not be able to make it, but kudos for his successful run for the Board of Directors, East Bay Regional Park District.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  A couple of very quick process points before we jump into the first item on the agenda.  And that is just a quick reiteration of some tools that have helped us keep the meeting on time and on topic.  I will ask everyone who may consider making comments or posing questions to stick to our two minute time limit.  And I do have a timer that I have not had to use in past meetings, which is very nice.  People are very, very concise and direct and to the point.  But that will help us entertain as many questions and comments as possible.  So please keep in your mind that two minute time limit.  

One thing that we have to help people organize their thoughts around comments or questions are these green slips.  CAG members, you have them in the front of the room.  There is additional copies in the back.  And these are not required to pose a question or a comment, but it does help sometimes to organization one's thoughts.  

The other thing is if for some reason we run out of time to get to all of the questions and comments, we have your question or comment recorded.  It can go to our secretary, Ms. Graves, and can then be responded to in some way after the meeting by the appropriate party.  So please keep these green question slips in mind.  They are also a way for you to submit an agenda request for a future meeting.  And the third thing I just wanted to point out again is that we have been keeping an action item list posted at all of our meetings.  It is a nice way to make sure that any action items that come up get recorded with the person responsible and some kind of time line around when the item will be addressed.  

This is also the place that if we get to a topic or item that just isn't within the purview of tonight's agenda, we don't have to lose it.  We can get it and put it up here and decide how that item or topic will be addressed in some way in the future.  So we have our action item list, the green question slips, and our request to keep the contributions from the audience to about two minutes each.  

And other than that, my sole responsibility will be keeping everybody on task.  I am very interested in the content, but I will be contributing nothing to that content.  So with that I think we will ask a representative from DTSC    is it Ms. Cook this evening    to give the report or update.

MS. COOK:  Good evening.  A lot of the items I probably will not address tonight, just because we have specific speakers who will be addressing those.  So I won't go through any of those items.  Michelle is here to discuss the Zeneca things.  I just wanted to point out as part of my presentation that I am acknowledging that we did receive comments from the CAG on the pore water and the radiological issues.  So we have received those comments, and we'll move forward as part of our review and address those.  Also I guess I am asking a question    we also have the implementation report as it relates to the PCB area, and I just wanted to know whether or not the CAG would be submitting comments as it relates to that document.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  The only thing that I wanted to highlight on the activities as it relates to Zeneca is that in the next 30 days the Department is expecting to receive a scoping assessment work plan for the eco work assessment as it relates to the chemical evaporation ponds.  On moving off of Zeneca, I will let Michelle address any additional comments as it relates to the Harborfront.  

The Department has been able to reinstate the Weiss contract, so we will be    we have gone back and given them comments as it relates to the investigation report that has been drafted, hoping to get that document finished.  Because there is chromium six in the underlying groundwater there we are going to be looking at using State funds to further evaluate some additional pond studies to address that chromium 6 contamination.  

UC Richmond Field Station, we expect to receive by the end of this month a Current Condition Report which we will upload on the community involvement page.  Bio Rad, we actually have an actual presentation on Bio Rad, so I am going to actually defer to them as part of their presentation.  

Marina Bay, all the things I need to go through on this one are the Marina Bay Area FF, which is    I have to get my directions straight.  That is north    it is kind of north of the marina area, in that area over there.  It is    we met with the Marina Bay Community Association to answer questions on the upcoming restrictions that were planned in that area underneath the tennis court area.  So we hope to have the land use restriction document put into place before the end of the calendar year.  

The five year review.  We have gotten some preliminary results as it relates to the five year review.  There are two areas within the five year review that have detected TPH as gasoline.  One of them is in the street, in the Peninsula area, and the other one is in Shimada Park in that area where we detected it.  

So we are going to do additional sampling out there.  The City is going to do additional sampling to try to define what the extent of the problem is and what that means.  We should expect more work to be there.  

Area D, as part of our annual inspection we found that there are some erosion problems there.  There is at least five to six feet of clean fill there before you get to the contaminated soil, but as part of the surface erosion, the City is going to be conducting some field work out there to take away the steepness of the slope, make it a little more gentle, and that is going to require, basically, a month of work.  So they are going to soften the slope and then hyper seed that area.  And all of that work will probably be happening in the next    by next week, starting in about a month time period.  

Liquid Gold, the Department actually has a meeting scheduled with Union Pacific.  I apologize that Mark was not able to come tonight, but his mother recently died out of the state, and he has been out of the office and just returned.  So we will report back to the issues that have been raised by the CAG at the December meeting.  And we will sit down then.  There are some things that have been done.  We have made calls to Union Pacific as well as other issues, trying to bring that project moving forward here.  

Within the last week we received a number of letters, so we are here to acknowledge the receipt of the letters.  The letter may have been dated October 28th, but I don't remember receiving it until this week.  So we will respond to those letters as well as Sherry, your email message that deals with East Stege Marsh that came in on October 31st.  We will send written responses to both of those letters.  

One last item that I want to cover as part of my presentation is the Envirostor system is going through an update as part of its process this last weekend, and as a results of every upgrade there is always little hiccups that occur.  So we are finding things they said were done but they really weren't done.  Some other documents you can't get access to, some documents that we thought were there that weren't there.  

So if as part of using the Envirostor, if you find these problems, please notify us so we can go back there and have it checked to try to get all of the hiccups completed and finished here.  Hopefully that won't be taking that long, as well as the fact that we received a number of documents, but because of some of the issues that are going on with Envirostor we haven't been able to get those uploaded.  So we will upload those as quickly as possible as well.  So I will defer this to Cherokee's representative, Michelle.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  Dr. King?

DR. KING:  Thank you.  I will try to keep the update brief and will largely try to hit on some points in the DTSC update.  The first one is that the third quarter groundwater monitoring reports were submitted on Halloween, and the PCB/VOC Lot One Removal Action Workplan and implementation report for that work was submitted to DTSC in October.  And it seems like they have done an initial review of the report and are awaiting CAG comments.  

The follow up work for the RAW area was to do some soil gas sampling.  And that sampling is scheduled for early December.  The DTSC also approved the Human Health Risk Assessment which Barbara didn't point out, but is on here, also a work plan to do some soil gas sampling on Lot Three, as requested by DTSC, to support the feasibility study that was recently submitted to DTSC, I think, yesterday.  And DTSC approved of the pilot study report that was done to look at potential groundwater treatment options on Lots One and Two.  

And also the annual cap inspection report for Lot Three cinder area was just submitted to DTSC also, I believe, yesterday.  Lastly, coming up soon, a well installation report for    there were two new wells, a shallow and deep well put in Lot Three, I believe, over the summer, if I recall, early in the summer.  And that report is being submitted sometime in the next few weeks.  That is all for my update, and I look forward to any questions.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  There is another microphone.  Mr. Robinson, would you pass that to Ms. Padgett?  And you have a comment or question for...

MS. PADGETT:  For DTSC and Cherokee and UC.  Right.  So it is     

MS. COOK:  UC?

MS. PADGETT:  And UC is one of them.  Let's see.  The question for UC is will we be seeing a status of the PCB removal soon.

MS. COOK:  For the PCB removal?  At the end of December.

MS. PADGETT:  So we will see a report on what happened?

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MS. PADGETT:  These other questions are    relate to some of the documents that Michelle just referenced and some other activities that are going on.  The first is the Lot One PCB/VOC area.  We did read the implementation report.  Seems like an odd name for the report, "implementation report."  I thought that it was something more akin to that this is what happened rather than this is what we are about to implement.  So the name of the report isn't either, really, a big issue.  

In the report there was a surprise.  And I am not sure many of the other members have had time to read it.  And it has to do with an area on the eastern side of Cell G.  To bring the rest of the community up to date, I think we have got a pointer somewhere.  The Lot One PCB/VOC area is right up here at the entrance to the UC Richmond Field Station.  And there was an action that happened there during the summer.  It was an emergency removal action where PCB and VOCs were removed.  And they also had arsenic at very high levels.  

One of the sections in this report describes some stained soil on the eastern side of Cell G that had a total petroleum hydrocarbons and some polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, TPH and PAHs, and there were also metals that had dark colors and staining.  And that was arsenic at 1500 milligrams per kilogram with backgrounds of 1600 milligrams per kilogram.  That wasn't so surprising because we have arsenic all over the site.  But they also found lead at 1,000 milligrams per kilogram.  And it seems that that kind of news back in August could have come to our attention here at the CAG meeting, not only in August, but also in September and then again in October.  

So three months have gone by.  They found a thousand milligrams per kilogram of lead, and nothing was said.  The report came out and it is in there.  It is in a couple of paragraphs.  But nobody said anything about lead at very, very high levels.  So there were, by my estimation, about 50 to 60 cubic yards extra dug out.  That is 21 by 8 by 3 feet.  So they dug out this extra area where they found this stained soil.  

And I think there are a couple of things that we want to learn about it.  One is even with all of the sampling that happened out there beforehand, this area of a thousand milligrams per kilogram of lead was missed.  And so even for all of the sampling that has gone on in the site characterization to date and all of the targeted sampling that went on in this specific area, they went to dig, and they found an area that had this much lead in it.  

That is really    I think that is a lesson for all of us that even for all of the efforts that have gone into characterizing the site, we really don't know everything that is out there.  And there are surprises around the corner.  So we can't say that we have a full and accurate characterization.  We have a full and accurate characterization of those areas that we have sampled.  We don't know what is right next to a lot of those areas.

There is also a description about dust being exceeded beyond a limit for a little while on August 5th.  And we are reminded of David Kim's coming to the CAG meeting and talking about the dust;    the visible dust.  And there is a description in the report.  We appreciate the description, and we hope that David will take time to recognize that, yes, there is a description of dust being exceeded beyond the limits.  And so I think it is important that the public observations continue to be given merit when they are brought to the meeting and shared with the responsible parties.  

On the third quarter groundwater monitoring report we are going to be sending comments.  And among the points that I would really like to bring to both DTSC and Cherokee's attention is the dual VOC screening criteria at the bottom of the tables.  We went through this with the Remedial Investigation Report, and I know that the CAG really had some issues with having two different screening levels on one    on one responsible party's property.  

But we have got less stringent VOC criteria for Lot Three than we do with Lots One and Two, and it is really pretty confounding when you look at the quarterly ground monitoring report and see different screening criteria at the bottom of the table.  So that will be in the report.  

The lower groundwater horizon monitoring appears to be adopted except for three.  So out of all of the areas that are sampled throughout the entire property there are only three that have the lower groundwater horizon measured.  And even though the response might be that there is no connected pathway, we still need to keep track of what is going on with those lower plumes.  

And we are wondering if DTSC is going to    and this is a question for you, Barbara, and you, Lynn, given the VOCs expanding beyond the biologically active permeable barrier and going south, will DTSC be looking at more monitoring expanding into Stege Marsh.  And you don't have to answer that.  That is a question for you for the future.  

And it also appears that metals are increasing above the ecological screening level in Stege Marsh.  And so that goes with the VOCs as well.  Will there be more sampling expanding into Stege Marsh as a result?  And the rest of this we can put in a letter.  

Another one that I'd really like to    two more here before I close.  One is a question about the effectiveness of changing the pH in the biologically active permeable barrier.  For the public and the CAG, if you remember, the biologically active permeable barrier runs about    I would say 1500 feet along the south side here.  It is about    somewhere between 10 and 20 feet high, a couple of feet wide, and the intent was to change the pH as the water flows from north to south into the marsh as well as collecting some of the metals.  

But there are some samples in a couple of the monitoring wells where it appears that the pH is not, in fact, changing as it moved from up gradient to down gradient.  And the last is on the quarterly groundwater monitoring reports there doesn't appear to be an ecological criteria for vinyl chloride.  There is vinyl chloride moving into the marsh area.  

So I know you probably can't make comments on much of any of this tonight, but that is part of what is going to be in the letter.

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions or comments for either DTSC or Cherokee Simeon from the CAG?

DR. KING:  Actually, Kay, I would like to respond to a couple of the comments that Sherry made with regards to the PCB/VOC area.

MS. WALLIS:  Please, Dr. King. 

DR. KING:  With regard to the stained soil, I don't remember the exact date that the stained soil was discovered.  But we certainly notified DTSC of the stained soil.  And if it were a time that was close to a CAG meeting I would have said that there was stained soil found and stained soil excavated and confirmation samples were collected.  It was about a truckload of soil that went off for the stained soil.  And I don't recall the concentrations of lead in the stained samples, but they were well below the cleanup levels.  So it was a very limited area.  

And the important thing is that we found it and we dealt with it appropriately.  In terms of the dust, there was one exceedance of our dust standard instantaneous measurement that we had.  It was on a day that they were bringing in import fill from the quarry to backfill the excavation.  And when they started to bring in the import fill, the contractor did not have their dust control water truck out there.  We said "No, you can't unload this soil because you don't have the dust control."  The initial loads of soil actually were wetted at the quarry before they came over.  Those were fine.  They didn't generate dust.  They dumped, which generated dust, but it was basically clean soil from a quarry where we had that dust exceedance. 

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. McLaughlin?

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Thank you.  I have a question, Barbara, I think it would be for you.  On the five year review, the Marina Bay five year review, you said that TPH has been identified by samplings, both under the street and at Shimada Park.  Is that correct? 

MS. COOK:  Yes. 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  So also I did take a look at the    I guess it was a letter to    from PES Environmental to Mr. Tony Matera.  Anyway, it identifies that there is    you actually said, Barbara, there is likely recommendation for additional work and including preparation and implementation of a work plan for indoor air sampling.  Could you elaborate on, you know, what that really means, areas, you know, the concern that that... 

MS. TOTH:  Hi.  I am Karen Toth, and actually that is the very end of the letter.  And basically it says depending on what we find, the next set may be indoor air or may not be.  There may be additional sampling.  Right now the original samples were taken kind of in the middle of the lane of traffic on Peninsula Drive.  

So there is still another 15 or 20 feet before we even hit the back yards.  So the next round of sampling is to take samples close to the yards to see if we can define where the soil gas contamination is.  Same thing in Shimada Park.  The samples were taken close to the area where the material    which was a lot of petroleum material as well as lead contamination    was buried.  So we have a little more space in Shimada Park before we even get to the backyards.  

The normal process would be take your samples, you find something, you step out, you take some more.  We are hoping to get to below the screening levels before we get into the backyards.  The step after that would be to sample in the backyards.  And only after    if we found elevated levels in the backyards, we would look at the indoor air.  So does that make sense?

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Yeah.  I will just hope to have this updated as it goes along.  It sounds like an area of big concern.

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions or comments from the CAG before we go to the audience?  Questions or comments for DTSC or Cherokee Simeon from the audience?  Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  I sent a letter on the standing water in Stege Marsh, and you said earlier, Barbara, that DTSC is going to be addressing that.  One idea that has been brought to my attention is this idea of a shallow basin.  And as we are watching it I want to put that out to you to consider.  Perhaps a shallow basin that is accumulating water, it doesn't seem to drain, it is a higher elevation than the tide, it does go down somewhat, but it is growing and accumulating water over time.  

So it is    there is a depression out there, and for the rest of the community there is an area right here at the end of the cap where water is not influenced by tidal action, except that water seems to come up from underneath and is not bubbling up.  It is just rising from underneath.  And then it stays in place as kind of a lake.  And the lake seems to be growing somewhat.  

And we have sent pictures and we have documented it and sent it off to DTSC asking them to investigate.  

MS. WALLIS:  Additional comments or questions before we move on to our next item?  Mr. Robinson, our chair, is going to handle the next item of nominations in preparation for the December meeting.

MR. ROBINSON:  Well, it's the time for year end nominations and election cycle.  And obviously we are going to start out with the nomination letter.  Carolyn is going to arrive shortly with the nomination ballots which will be collected at the close of the meeting today.  As we saw it both at the local level and the national level, a change in DNA can be very healthy for the Executive Committee, for the CAG.  And I strongly recommend anyone who is interested in either nominating themselves or others for office.  

The nomination ballot will have some names with preprinted names on it as suggestions.  They have expressed interest in the past, and    but that doesn't preclude, obviously, nominating anyone on the CAG, including yourself, for any office.  These are going to be turned in to Carolyn at the close of today's meeting.  And any nominee who wishes to can send an email out to the CAG to discuss their nomination and why they should be elected to office in the Executive Committee.  And then the elections will be held at the December meeting.  

Dan, I know you are chairing the committee.  Is there anything that you wanted to add, you know, as a    getting back to the local election, speaking of changing DNA, there is someone who ran for office, and although unsuccessfully was very well qualified.  And through a third party I have asked that person to join the CAG and perhaps even run for the executive office.  Now, I haven't heard back yet, but nominations could happen at any time between now and the December meeting, so that we could have some exciting things.  Dan, did you have anything? 

MR. SCHWAB:  No.  I think you said it very well.

MR. ROBINSON:  We won't need the whole ten minutes, Kay, so we have some cushion time.

MS. ABBOTT:  I have a question.  Do we know if Carolyn is willing to continue on as secretary? 

MR. ROBINSON:  As far as I know she is, but I don't think she would block any other nominations.   

MS. ABBOTT:  I was just asking if she is willing.

MR. ROBINSON:  I think she is. 

MS. ABBOTT:  I just didn't understand when you said you asked someone to join us.  What do you mean?  

MR. ROBINSON:  It is sort of interesting.  We are nominating candidates for the executive meeting, but we are on a constant basis always looking for new members from the community.  So by looking at people who are involved in the community and want to get more involved, this would be an excellent venue to do that.  So I thought it would be a good idea to extend a nomination for both membership and candidacy    and/or candidacy to a person that ran for office in Richmond.  And so if that    if that happens that would be great.  I am not going to name names because it hasn't happened yet.  But if it does it would happen between now and the next meeting.

MS. ABBOTT:  I think I understand where you are going.

MR. ROBINSON:  I am not trying to be cryptic.

MS. ABBOTT:  I got it.  Just curious about the membership and how people have to be from certain neighborhoods or whatever, how that fits in and make sure that is part of the mix and the process.

MR. ROBINSON:  That is a good point.  Diane brought that up at a past meeting that the CAG has quite a bit of latitude in setting that.  And I think we need to take full advantage of that so that we get as much and as full a representation as we possibly can.

MS. ABBOTT:  Okay.

MR. ROBINSON:  A librarian should like that approach.  

MS. ABBOTT:  Yes, I like that approach.

MS. WALLIS:  So that concludes that item.  All right.  We have reached now a little bit early the point for Dr. Ned Butler to do a presentation on the OEHHA RAP report on beryllium.  Is Dr. Butler here? 

DR. BUTLER:  He is here.  What do you want me to do with this here?

MS. WALLIS:  This is on.  Dr. Ned Butler.

DR. BUTLER:  Hi.  My name is Ned Butler, and I work with the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, which is the Cal EPA.  And our group is largely responsible for setting toxicity criteria for different chemicals.  And about five or six years ago we were delegated authority    well, we were given the responsibility for developing some soil levels that would be used for determining whether or not a site would have to undergo further evaluation.  

These were screening criteria because there was pressure to screen sites out that weren't going to need a full risk assessment.  And at that time we developed numbers for between 25 and 30 different chemicals including three forms of beryllium.  And because at that time there were different toxicity criteria for three different forms of beryllium.  And what happened recently was there was a reevaluation of the toxicity criteria for the three different forms of beryllium.  

And two of the forms, the sulfate and the oxide, had formally been considered carcinogenic by the oral route, and it was determined that there wasn't any longer support for that scientifically.  So they were withdrawn.  So what that meant for me was as the calculator of the soil values, I had to recalculate numbers, not considering them carcinogenic, but beryllium, in all forms, are still considered carcinogenic by inhalation route.  And it resulted in us raising the sulfate and oxide forms substantially.  

I think I will just stop there because I really don't know exactly what the questions are.  And I don't want to go into a lot of nerdy details that won't be interesting.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Can you talk about non-carcinogenic effects of beryllium compound? 

MS. WALLIS:  Actually, if you don't mind my interruption, if you wouldn't mind standing there.  I think it would be easier for the whole audience.

DR. BUTLER:  Okay.  Everybody.  Oh, yeah.  I got that.  I will be Phil Donahue.  On the non-carcinogenic, I believe the criteria is based on toxicity    intestinal toxicity in laboratory animals.

DR. ESPOSITO:  The reason why we are interested is we had a building called Beryllium 80 on site here in which beryllium melting took place and handling of beryllium metals.  And we have no information about what the status of that building was at the time it was decommissioned in 1977.  It is also the building in which uranium metal was handled.  So that is the reason we are very much interested in the toxic effects of beryllium metal, oxide and sulfates. 

MS. PADGETT:  And I have a personal interest in it because beryllium, when it was injected into rabbits and dogs, caused chondrosarcoma, which is a very rare cancer.  And I was diagnosed with chondrosarcoma after the Big Dig and some other things that went on at the site.  There aren't very many compounds in the toxicity world that could be directly related to this type of cancer or these types of tumors.  And while these tumors, chordoma and chondrosarcoma, are    there is a definite link and there is a lot of proofs and plenty of documentation out thereabout injecting the animals with beryllium and these tumors forming, there is little to no documentation because there haven't been any studies on the relationship between the two.  

And so for me to have worked directly across the street and 50 feet from the site and have these tumors grow    and I still have a number of them with me that we are watching    and to have a specific compound and specifically beryllium at the site having been handled, and then for OEHHA to come out and say, "Well, we had one level that    we had one level of toxicity.  Now we have gone back and looked at the documentation, and we are making our standard less stringent.  So we are relaxing our thresholds."  

And so we wanted to hear more about why that is.  And part of it is not for the rest of the community.  I am just giving you my own personal story about the link and the curiosity about this one kind of    this one toxin.

DR. BUTLER:  Yeah.  Well, let me actually address your part first on that.  And that is I think it can be very frustrating for people because when we are regulatory agencies, we are limited to basing the toxicity criteria on routes of exposure that are relevant to what we are trying to do.  And it is either oral or inhalation.  So there is many cases were there is experimental stuff done where you are given an injection or something to get an effect, but they are not going to be the kinds of studies that we need in order to develop a regulatory criteria.  And I am sorry that that is the case.  But that is just, unfortunately, the way that that is.  

Then for the format, what happens, and actually the developing these numbers that I had to do, that a law gets passed.  All of a sudden we are given a job to do in a very tight time line.  And we need to come up with something in order to get things done.  And that is essentially what happened in the 1980s with US-EPA.  And they were given a massive number of chemicals for which they needed to come up with toxicity criteria.  

I think a number of the chemicals they did a very good job on.  Beryllium, they did not do a good job on it.  So there is something called a health assessment document that EPA was putting together in the 1980s.  And that was the basis for the US-EPA criteria at that time, and it was also what was adopted in with a large number of chemicals to the California criteria.  

What happened in the mid '90s was US-EPA looked at it and said, "This is not credible," that it was a negative study.  They didn't feel there was support for it.  What happened was it stayed on our books for a long time.  And then what we had happen was    I don't know exactly the date, but it was after 2000, we came up    we developed a beryllium criteria for drinking water which is an oral exposure.  And that document agreed with US-EPA that this document really did not provide enough evidence to really support the oral carcinogenicity of the two kinds of beryllium. 

So as a result we had to take the numbers that had gone in under the    in 1989 and they were withdrawn.  And then that is what lead to my recalculating the soil standards.  So I know that may not make people happy, but I hope it is at least clear.

MS. PADGETT:  Can you describe for everyone here what they were and what they are now and maybe in the form of milligrams per kilogram so that they understand the magnitude of the change? 

DR. BUTLER:  I am going to go blank, but I think that for the sulfate it was on the order of 2  or 3,000.  And what happens is it just was eliminated.  And the oxide was not as low, but it was still quite low.  And that was    and that was eliminated.  And that is what gives rise to the large increases you see in the soil screening levels.  And I think one thing to keep in mind is these soil screening levels are not regulatory numbers.  The whole idea of them is if you have a site and if you are below these levels then you don't need to do any further characterization.  That is the only thing that these soil screening levels do.  

So it is not like you can make someone clean it up or anything.  It was just sort of a way of getting sites that were not going to be any problem through the process quicker and not having to go through the entire lengthy regulatory process.  Any other questions? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I just thought it would be reasonable to mention that the two cancers that Sherry Padgett talked about have about a worldwide incidence of about 1 in 10 million.  And the three cases that I know of in which individuals have been found to have these tumors involve areas in which there was the handling of uranium metal and probably other metals like beryllium because they were old AEC sites.  And beryllium was a metal which was used in preparing atomic weapons.  

So there are three cases of which we know in the United States, Richmond, California, Zeneca Stauffer site, Sherry, one in New York, and a case in Long Island.  And each one of them is a site when exotic metals were handled and smelted and burned.  

So I think that maybe we need to enlarge our horizon of the kind of data we take into consideration when we decide what is toxic and what isn't.  I agree injecting animals may be not relevant, but I think the epidemiological data are getting very strong that there is something unusual about being around beryllium and other metals.   

MR. SCHWAB:  Hi.  Thank you for coming out here tonight.  My first question is you said when it comes to an oral pathway for exposure to beryllium you said there were three variations of beryllium and that two of them are not of concern.  The first question is what about the other one? 

DR. BUTLER:  Oh, well, that one was never    never had cancer for it.  So that was    what happened was the sulfate and the oxide got excepted out, and everything else was lumped together, beryllium and compound.  And so it never was    it was not    what I should say, it was not considered when I developed my numbers back four or five years ago.  It was not considered carcinogenic by the oral route.  Okay.  And so then what these other two were, and so the changes in the numbers were    came about when their oral potencies were eliminated.  So is that clear?

MR. SCHWAB:  Well, that helps.  So if I could try to sort of put this in layman's terms, that would mean that if there was beryllium in the groundwater somewhere, that that doesn't pose a risk to people?

DR. BUTLER:  No.  There is still toxicity    these soil criteria aren't relevant to that.

MR. SCHWAB:  Okay.  But if the beryllium is in    if the soil dries out and it is dust, and therefore you could inhale it, then there is a problem.  And there is no question of that.

DR. BUTLER:  Right.  That is taken into account in these criteria that are developed.  But it just turns out there is just a small amount of dust that is generated as compared to what we assume a person will eat that it    that tends not to drive the number    that tends not to be the dominant effect. 

MR. SCHWAB:  But we still don't know what is out there in terms of how much beryllium there may actually be on the site.  But that is not necessarily   

DR. BUTLER:  Unfortunately, that is not my bailiwick.  I am just here with toxicity criteria.

MR. SCHWAB:  Okay.

MS. ABBOTT:  I just want to say that this is a site that is right off the Bay, that gets gusty winds, and when the stuff was torn down, it    there are people who witnessed it being like night, you know, during the day, because of the amount of dust that was flying around.  And Sherry and other people swept dust off of the driveways down in the businesses.  And it does seem that, you know, it certainly could have been a harmful amount of inhalation of dust.  I am just stunned.  I am very stunned.

MS. PADGETT:  Ned, we really appreciate you coming.  And it is a tough job.  Tonight you weren't fortunate enough to see a little logo that we have for 2008.  The Toxics Committee put together a little Tox Com box, and it has a lid that is open kind of like a Jack in the box.  And we have really tried to talk to our regulators about understanding that they are    that they have the limits of the regulations that they have to work within, and encouraging all of them, including you, to think within your regulatory guidelines but outside that comfort zone, that box that you live within.  

And we know that there are models that you use and that you are comfortable in using when you assess risk.  And we would encourage you    you can't do anything about the beryllium today, but as you go forward in the rest of your career, take opportunities to look at other ways to assess risk and other    bring in other models and encourage others to bring in other models to do no harm so that communities like ours when    who knew that we had a beryllium processing building on the site?  So that more caution is taken preliminarily because people like you are sending up the flag to say   

DR. BUTLER:  "Watch out." 

MS. PADGETT:  "Watch out," instead of saying, "Well there is no risk."  If you don't find five milligrams per kilogram in the soil, then you don't have to test anymore," instead saying, "You know, if there was a beryllium processing facility out there," much as we didn't find the lead out there at the PCB/VOC area    you missed that conversation earlier    at 1,000 milligrams per kilogram, perhaps there are other areas that we didn't find the beryllium because we just didn't sample in the place where it is.  So use much caution, and it is people like you that we turn to to give us guidance.  And because you are limited, because of the regulatory guidelines, and you are using scientific data to do your interpretations, and you are coming back and telling us, "Well, the guidelines are more relaxed today than they were three months ago because you have gone back and reviewed the data," we hope that, you know, this evening you take into consideration that a community like ours really needs you to be as stringent as you can be.

DR. BUTLER:  No.  I was not pleased to be coming down here tonight because this isn't an enviable role.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I just wanted to make one comment to you that will, hopefully, be helpful, and that is that individuals vary tremendously from one another in their susceptibility to beryllium disease, especially chronic beryllium disease.  It turns out there is only a very small fraction of the population that goes on to chronic beryllium disease because they are immunologically impaired with respect to their ability to cope with this metal.  So they are really the canaries in the gold mine.  So when you set levels that are maybe set for 99.9 percent of us, there are those individuals who will be    go on to the disease.  

DR. BUTLER:  That is absolutely true.  And I think this is the first time I have met one.  So I am sorry.  But it is kind of the way it works.  And I hear you.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  I have seen a couple of hands in the audience.  Before I move to the audience are there any questions or comments from the CAG?

MR. ALCAREZ:  When we first heard about beryllium it was    so I read up on it.  It said that any exposure to beryllium could be big    I didn't know the results.  And now as the year grows older it seems as though from the first of the year until now there is change as far as exposure goes.  Whereas before I was frightened of it and thought, gee, I have been a worker around that stuff for years.  And then I read what the actual function of it was.  You know, it's to keep the atoms from fighting each other and causing the explosion.  

But, yeah, I am surprised that it has changed so drastically, though, in such a quick time.  Just a comment.  I think the process to assess exposure which Sherry kind of related to is just too conservative.  And the fact that we have three individuals within a small area having the same rare cancer should be taken more seriously by some of the professionals that are assessing risk.  And, you know, that is all.

MS. WALLIS:  And I saw a hand here and    please state your name for the transcriptionist.  

MR. SCHNEFF:  My name is Donald Schneff.  I have physically handled beryllium.  And I think you stated there was    your limit was 2,000 milligrams per kilogram. 

DR. BUTLER:  No.  That is the potency.  It is in kind of a complex    it is actually milligrams per kilogram body weight over one.  And it is just    I could go into a lot of detail, but it is pretty boring.  Maybe I can talk to you afterwards to get into    

MR. SCHNEFF:  The reason I am questioning is beryllium is very light.  So a milligram of beryllium is a lot compared to a milligram of, let's say, steel.  So, you know, you are talking a lot more quantity, volume.  And the other thing is, given the extreme toxicity of beryllium, I hate to say this, but it sounds like it is a bureaucratic whitewash.

DR. BUTLER:  You know, in some ways it is.  All right.  And, you know, it is not a whitewash as much as it is    we rarely have enough data from the scientific literature to do an adequate job, and we are limited by what information we have in the literature.  And we do    I mean, as was pointed out here, we have processes that we go through, sort of the way it works, but I would say what the problem here is we don't have enough of the right kind of data to do the job that we would like to do.  

MR. SCHNEFF:  One other question.  There are a couple of beryllium compounds, beryllium copper and copper beryllium.  Beryllium copper is used in special tools, for instance, at refineries because they don't create sparks when they are handled.  Are these compounds toxic?

DR. BUTLER:  You know, I bet you guys know more about the different salts of beryllium than I do.  And I don't want to say I know about that.  I know how from the regulatory standard they would be considered beryllium compounds.  And I know of no basis for why they are singled out for additional toxicity over other beryllium compounds.  But, again, one of the things to keep in mind is we are also limited by the studies that we can pull out of the literature, and there is just a finite amount of studies that are done in the literature.  

MR. SCHNEFF:  May I ask one other question?  I am astounded that you are only considering 25 to 30 substances out of the thousands of compounds that are out there.

DR. BUTLER:  You have to remember, this is what gets people off the hook.  Okay.  These are screening levels that if you are below those at a site, you don't have to go through a full risk assessment.  I don't know if you know what these risk assessments are, but you go into a lot of details and calculations. 

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Rabovsky and then Mr. Weiner. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Hi.  I think it is a good thing    I think we should point out that, as I understand that draft document, correct me if I am wrong, that under beryllium and compounds, although it is based on non-cancer toxicity, that because there was a concern about cancer which could not be quantified, there was an added uncertainty factor applied.  And therefore the resulting CHSSL for beryllium and compounds was actually lowered by about tenfold from what it was in the original document.  

And I just    I don't know if this is helping the CAG or not to understand these issues, but since we are talking about cancer and non-cancer and which criteria are being applied to which compound, I just wanted that to be clarified that it is true.  Very often it is just a lack of quantitative data.  But you are still concerned and what you are left with is this one possibility of applying an uncertainty factor to take that into account.  

I have a couple of more questions, but they don't relate to this document.  They relate to the use of the CHSSLs by DTSC or anybody else in site cleanup.  And I don't know when I should be addressing them because Ned would not be a part of that process.

MS. WALLIS:  What is the direction    would that be better under Toxics Committee? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think so.  

MR. WEINER:  Hi.  Peter Weiner.  Ned, thanks a lot for coming tonight.  I appreciate it.  There was something that you said that I didn't understand, so I just have questions I can pursue with you later.  But you mentioned    Sherry mentioned an injection study that had produced chondrosarcomas.  And I know that there are all sorts of routes of administration when people do toxicological testing.  There is inhalation.  There is skin testing for dermal absorption.  There is oral ingestion, and there is also, I guess    I can't remember what gavage is called, but that is all I think of it as.  It is oral.  And there is injection.  When OEHHA looks at whether something should be listed, for example, under Prop 65, does it look at injection studies as well as a tumor outcome or does it only look at oral and inhalation in dirt? 

DR. BUTLER:  I don't work for Prop 65, so I am going to answer this with a caveat that I may be wrong.  But there are two parts to Prop 65.  One is to determine whether or not something goes on the list.  And it wouldn't surprise me if they might consider it there.  But in the second part, which is accepting the criteria, I would be surprised if they did because you are looking for absorption across the gut barrier, because there are lots of chemicals that we don't want in our bloodstream, but they can't get there.  So that is why they are not a problem.  I shouldn't say not a problem, but there is a big barrier there.  I am not certain of that.  I am guessing that that is the way they would do it.

MR. WEINER:  And generally with metals I gather there is some notion that the oral route is different from inhalation because of some pharmacokinetics or biological mechanisms that change the metal and therefore it cannot become carcinogenic where in the lungs it is, or what is the notion there?  What is the theory there that it is different? 

DR. BUTLER:  There is a whole lot of different kind of theories.  There is contact carcinogenesis.  So it's sort of like when coming in, the first thing they run into are the lung cells.  So that's why we generate the carcinogenesis there.  And it wouldn't be the same if they got transferred by the blood barrier and maybe they don't get there.  They are in the concentrations.  It gets very complex.  And I think the answer is we don't know a lot of    why things are the way they are.  There is speculation, but I am not sure hard evidence.  

MR. WEINER:  So in all of the CHSSLs what you are looking at is is there evidence by inhalation.  Is there evidence oral or dermal.  You have to be very careful.

DR. BUTLER:  With the CHSSLs I didn't do any toxicology.  I was like a consumer of these toxicity criteria.  My job was if you were to do a full scale risk assessment, according to the process, what would be the lowest number you would get.  And then I ran through calculations like that.  So that is how we set the screening level.  The idea being that if you were below the lowest number you could get with the default assumptions, then you shouldn't have to go through the expense of doing a full scale risk assessment.  I can't believe this site doesn't have a risk assessment.  

MS. LAPIERRE:  It does.

DR. BUTLER:  This is like a screening level.  You guys are way beyond the numbers that I created.

MS. WALLIS:  Other comments or questions from either to the audience or the CAG for Dr. Butler?  Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  I would really like to thank you for coming.  You were very brave.

DR. BUTLER:  You are not as tough as I thought you were.  Thank you very much.

DR. RABOVSKY:  We haven't finished yet.  It is not the end of the meeting.

DR. BUTLER:  I know where the door is.

MS. WALLIS:  We are actually running a few minutes ahead of schedule, which is the perfect time to take the ten minute break.  Please return at 7:47, in ten minutes.  

(Recess.)

MS. WALLIS:  Before we get to our next item, our chair has just a couple of words of update about the nominations.  

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you, Kay.  I distributed during the break the nominations form.  And there are names on here.  They could be wrong.  The people might not be interested anymore.  Or it could be that it is still accurate.  The important part is to fill in a name that you would like to nominate, name or names, and turn it in to Carolyn by the end of the meeting.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  We have now reached the place in the agenda where we will have a presentation by Bio Rad.  And we welcome Mr. Joe Griebstein and Nancy Bice with their presentation.  There is a handout for the presentation.  All CAG members should have received one.  And there are two more copies that I have.  I don't believe there was enough for every single audience member, so we do ask and invite you to please share with your neighbor.  I now have one copy.  Thanks for sharing or sitting next to someone who has one.

MS. BICE:  Thank you.  I am Nancy Bice.  And I am with Geosyntec Consultants in Oakland.  And Joe is here in the audience also.  He works for Bio Rad.  Geosyntec is the consultant to Bio Rad in this remediation project here in Richmond.  I gave you this handout, and we'll just walk through it.  I am sorry it doesn't have page numbers, but I will explain it well enough, hopefully, that you can follow us.

MS. PADGETT:  Could you walk over to the map and show us where Bio Rad is?  
MS. BICE:  Sure.  We are actually off your map.  We're not on your map. 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes, you are.

MS. BICE:  Oh, we are.  Here we are.  Does everybody see?  The Astra Zeneca is here.  The Field Station is here.  And we are here, Bio Rad.

MS. PADGETT:  Thanks.  That was helpful. 

MS. BICE:  Thank you for pointing out that we are on your map.  And the first page of this presentation is another map that shows where Bio Rad is also, just west of 580 and east of where we are right now on Regatta Boulevard.  This is our third presentation to the CAG.  So this is really just an update of what we have been doing.  

I will go through a little bit of the history so everybody is on the same page, but mostly I want to tell you about where we are now.  The next page is called "Environmental Overview."  Basically Geosyntec has been working for Bio Rad for 12 years on investigations of the site.  And through those investigations we have discovered soil and groundwater contamination at the site.  Primarily chloroform is our main contaminant.  And we have a little bit of TCE also.  We have two areas of the site where we have chloroform in the soil.  And it is within the plant boundaries.  And there is a map that shows that on the next page.  We also have groundwater at a depth of 10 feet at the site, and the groundwater also contains chloroform and some TCE, and that extends to a depth of about 40 feet.  

If you flip to the next page, it is a map of the Bio Rad facility.  You should note that north is to the right on this map.  So it is turned relative to the map over here, and the map that was in a previous slide.  The black area on this map shows where the groundwater that contains chloroform has been found on the site.  The green circles show the areas of chloroform in the soil.  And as you can see, those green circles extend under the buildings.  So we have a bit of a challenge at this site to clean up that soil because it extends under the buildings.  

One thing to look at is the location of Meeker Slough relative to the site.  On this map it is to the left of the site.  It actually runs east west along the south side of the site.  The next page, also titled "Environmental Overview," just gives you a summary of what we found relative to the Slough.  We did an investigation along the south side of the Slough and found contamination.  So we know that the contamination basically is    was discharging into the Slough.  We were ending up with very low concentrations of chloroform in the Slough, which is why we started pumping treated groundwater at the site to cut off that migration pathway to the Slough.  

We have been    we started our treatability study a year and a half ago.  And it is    while the study is over, we have continued to pump and treat groundwater to prevent that migration to the slough.  If you go to the next page you have a picture there of our treatment plant on the Bio Rad site that is continuing to treat groundwater.  The plant was finished in May of 2007.  And we have two groundwater extraction wells at the plant that pump water.  We use carbon filters to remove the solvents from the water, and then the water is discharged to the sanitary sewer.

MR. DOTSON:  You periodically test the water after it went through the filtration process?

MS. BICE:  Yes.  We do that on a regular basis. 

MR. DOTSON:  What are the results?

MS. BICE:  It has no VOCs at all.  The next page, also titled "Groundwater Treatability Study" just shows you the controls that we have at the site.  It is monitored daily.  And in addition to monitoring the groundwater on a regular basis we are also monitoring the surface water on a regular basis to track our progress.  The next figure shows some of the results of our work.  This is a map that shows the groundwater elevations at the Bio Rad site with our extraction wells working.  

On this one we have north oriented to the top of the page, the way it should be.  The purple line on the map is, again, the chloroform extent in groundwater.  And those blue lines show the elevation of the groundwater.  And you can see that the elevation of the groundwater is lowest near extraction wells.  And it shows us that we are getting good collection and good coverage of the chloroform plume into our extraction wells and into our treatment system.  

And at the same time we have been monitoring Meeker Slough, and we no longer have any VOCs in Meeker Slough.  Our wells go down to 25 feet.  But we are going to be putting in deeper wells shortly.  The next chart shows some of the statistics for treatment.  And we are pumping in a fairly low flow rate, but that is because the sediments out there are so fine that it doesn't take much to really pull in all the groundwater around this area.  So we are pumping at two gallons a minute.  

We have extracted about 1.2 million gallons of water at this point.  The chart on the right shows the amount of VOC mass that we have removed over time.  The orange line is the total VOCs.  The blue line is the chloroform, how much of that was removed.  And that turquoise line is the amount of water that has been pumped and treated.  So you can see we have pulled out about 650 pounds of VOCs to date.  And you can also see on this plot how at the beginning when they were first pumping we were pumping out quite a bit more    the higher concentrations were coming out early, and we were getting more mass out per day.  And that has dropped off over time, as we would expect.  And, again, we don't have any VOCs in our discharged water.

MS. WALLIS:  Let's repeat the question for the audience.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Sorry.  Are you purging your wells with clean water, with domestic water? 

MS. BICE:  No.  All we are doing is we are just pulling the groundwater out of the well and running that water through the treatment plan and discharging that water to the sanitary sewer.  That is all we are doing.

MR. ALCAREZ:  You are just removing the mass?

MS. BICE:  Right.   

MR. ALCAREZ:  Do any of them form clouds?

MS. BICE:  No.  It never comes to the air.  It is always in the water and in the carbon, and then the carbon gets shipped off for disposal. 

MR. ALCAREZ:  A lot of the times there is supposed to be venting.  When they vent, if it's quick, if it is a quick procedure, then the cloud will form.  So you have to watch the cloud because you can't see it.  It will attach to or draw to a human being.

MS. BICE:  Okay.  The next slide is a series of three maps that shows our progress in the groundwater.  And it represents the chloroform concentrations in our wells at our site over, basically, a two year period.  So the one on the left is what we started with in December of 2006.  And you can see we have some fairly high concentrations, hundreds of thousands of parts per billion of chloroform in our wells.  

We turned the system on in May of 2007.  And by September 2007, which is the middle map, you can see we had gotten some reductions in our concentrations.  The important well to look at here is MW6.  And I know it is hard to see, but it is between our extraction well and the Slough.  And it's between EW1 and the Slough.  By September of 2007 that well had dropped from 110,000 parts per billion to 230 parts per billion.  And today that well is down to nothing.  So we feel very good about those results and pulling that chloroform plume back to the site, basically.

The next slide is a picture of Meeker Slough.  We are monitoring the slough.  We are visually observing it.  We are taking samples of it just to make sure there no impacts to the Slough during this process.  We actually, as I said, completed our treatability study.  And the purpose of our treatability study was just to see if we could pump and treat this water without impacting the Slough and containing the chloroform plume.  And we were successful at doing that.  We submitted our report at the end of January in 2008.  

We concluded that the pump and treat was effective, but it is very expensive.  And so we recommended conducting a couple of more treatability studies, one to evaluate in situ technologies, in place technologies for treating the groundwater.  That would make this process cheaper.  It is very expensive, the above ground treatment.  And we also want to do some studies on how we can use or whether we can use soil vapor extraction to clean up those two areas of soil.  

And mostly those areas are under the building, so we need to use something like soil vapor extraction to get in under those buildings.  And in this whole timeframe we have continued to operate the groundwater extraction and treatment system.  And we would continue to operate it while we do these other studies.  

So the next page is an update on next steps.  We submitted our treatability study report to DTSC on March 25th, and they    I'm sorry.  That is when they approved it.  We submitted our work plan for these additional treatability studies, we have submitted two work plans on August the 5th of 2008.  We have gotten comments now from DTSC on those work plans in late September and early October.  And we just met with them last week to go over comments.  And of course they have asked us to do more.  

So we have modified those work plans, and we are doing    added some things that DTSC wanted us to do.  And one of them went in today.  The other one is still probably going to go in tomorrow.  We are also going to be submitting a work plan to do a baseline risk assessment for the site that is going to go in to DTSC in mid-December.  

And, you know, eventually all of these pieces of the studies will be used to prepare a corrective measures study for the site and ultimately a RAP for the final cleanup.

MR. DOTSON:  What additional tasks were you asked to do by DTSC?

MS. BICE:  They asked us to do a little bit of characterization of the distribution of the chloroform in the area where we are going to be doing our in situ testing.  That is the primary thing.

MS. WALLIS:  Question from Ms. Abbott.  

MS. ABBOTT:  On this page, I just can't read it.  There is a little, like, purple area, purple lines.   

MS. BICE:  That is the treatment plant.  

MS. ABBOTT:  How close to the surface    I know you have depth that goes down 30 feet, but how close?

MS. BICE:  The groundwater is at a depth of 10 feet.

MS. ABBOTT:  Okay.  Also I don't know who can answer it, but Rick was articulating a concern.  And I don't know if somebody can address that.  But   

MS. BICE:  Well, I can tell you, our treatment plan is permitted by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District.  So we are following all of their requirements for operating this treatment plant. 

MS. ABBOTT:  That doesn't reassure us necessarily.

MS. BICE:  We don't have chlorine gas generated from this process, so it is not a concern, if that helps.

MS. ABBOTT:  That helps.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito, and then Mr. Dotson.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I am looking at your graph.

MS. BICE:  Yes.

DR. ESPOSITO:  And I just had a question.  Between February and April of '08, the rate of discharge and also the production of chloroform and total VOCs seem to be plateauing.  And then in April it upticks again.  And it seems to be resuming the rate that you had between October '07 to February '08.  Is that just due to a change in the rate that you are pumping water through the system or was there a change in the quality of the water that is passing through?  

MS. BICE:  No.  That is a good catch.  What it reflects is the system was down for about a month.  So when that happens, the chemical concentrations tend to build up.  And then it takes a while to flush those out again.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.

MR. DOTSON:  So the buildup, where is the buildup coming from if you are pumping it out and filtering it and getting rid of it?  Where is it?

MS. BICE:  The thing that makes these sites so difficult to clean up is that the chemicals would rather stick to a soil particle than in the groundwater.  So they dissolve into the groundwater over time.  As you pull the concentrations out, then more of those chemicals dissolve out of the soil into the water.  So if you stop pumping for a little bit, the concentrations build up again.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Linsley and then Ms. Padgett.

MR. LINSLEY:  One of the things that the CAG has noticed in the Harborfront area and the Zeneca site is that there are several levels or horizons of groundwater.  And some of those are connected to each other and some aren't.  And it sounds like you have got contamination going down through different layers, depending how you are extracting from more of the top horizons or if you are talking about going lower.  Is that going to contaminate the groundwater further down if you have to go down to sink an extraction well into the deep horizon?

MS. BICE:  That is a good question.  And we have to construct that well very carefully.  And the way we are doing it is we are drilling a 10 inch hole first.  And we are putting casing down, and we are grouting around that casing down to a depth of 25 feet.  And then once that casing is set, we can go with the smaller bore hole down into the deeper units and see if those units are contaminated.  And it is    you know, this is basically the method that we use when we are worried about taking things down.

MS. PADGETT:  This may be a rhetorical question.  I am not sure you can answer it.  But it goes somewhat to what Whitney was asking and an answer you just gave about the VOCs wanting to stick to soil, and what consideration in all of the remediation possibilities    what consideration was given to actually digging the stuff out?  There is a source out there somewhere.  And, as Michael pointed    as Michael and you described, when the pump was down there was a flattening out of it.  And then it resumed its upward climb.  So if the pump is unplugged    and this wonderful picture we have here of the shrinking plume    as soon as it is unplugged there is the possible likelihood that that plume then re-expands because the source is still there, the stuff is stuck to the soil, what consideration was given to getting at the source?

MS. BICE:  Well, you know, we are still in the phase of deciding what the best remedy is.  So we have not ruled out excavation.  Joe does not want to dig up his plant.  So we are trying to find other methods.  But we haven't gotten to that point yet.  And our main priority was stopping that migration.  And we have done that.  Now what we are trying to do is look at some technologies that will actually get into these fine grain spaces and destroy the chemical in place.  At the same time we will be operating our pump and treat system to make sure that whole thing is contained. 

MS. PADGETT:  Are you looking at permanganate or cheese whey or one of the others that we looked at at the Zeneca site? 

MS. BICE:  We are looking at permanganate.  We are also going to look at a microbe that has been demonstrated to degrade chloroform.  Most of the microbes out there that people are using are    chloroform is toxic to those microbes.  So we can't use those.  But there has been one developed recently that we are going to test, and we are going to do bench scale tests in the lab to see if they work before we try them out in the field. 

MS. PADGETT:  Will the pump and treat continue while you are doing the bench test?

MS. BICE:  Absolutely.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have a question.  If you increase the flow rate does the level of the VOCs and other compounds decrease or increase?

MS. BICE:  Well, unfortunately it decreases, because if we increase our flow rate, all we are doing is pulling more clean water. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  So you are operating at the slowest rate that would give you the optimal concentration, two gallons per minute? 

MS. BICE:  Exactly right.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Yes.  Mr. Schwab.

MR. SCHWAB:  So you have taken out 650 pounds of the stuff.  That is good.  How much was out there?  Do we have any idea what the source was, and is there any way of calculating what the total amount of contaminants is?

MS. BICE:  I don't think there is a reliable way to do that.  There is way, way too much in question to do that, and usually when we do we are off by at least an order of magnitude.  So it is misleading to do.  We    the source we know was a tank farm, chloroform tank farm out in that area of the plant.  So our challenge is    it seeped out and seeped under the building, and that is our challenge, to get it back out.  And I don't know how much is there.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Padgett, and then we will ask if there are comments or questions from the audience.

MS. PADGETT:  That last statement brings out the question about sampling the air inside the building.  Is that something that you are doing?  Given that a building is over part of this contaminated area, are the workers inside that building    is there safe    I am sure that everyone is going to say that you are concerned about their safety, but is there a routine plan to check the air inside that building?

MS. BICE:  The workers are working with chemicals in that plant already.  So they are already wearing health and safety protection for working in the plant.  And we have done some modeling, and we are pretty confident that this is not adding to that.  But that is the process we are about to get through with DTSC in the risk assessment.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  In addition to the staff that usually work with chemicals, there are others who come and deliver the mail and sweep up after.  So it is not just those individuals who deal with the compounds that you might be working with every day.  It would be other support staff that often get ignored.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Alcarez, Ms. Abbot, and then we will take comments from the audience.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Yeah.  In the early '70s I did some remodeling in Bio Rad.  And they    I am a plumber    not like Joe the plumber    I am a real plumber.  Anyway, in the early '70s I worked in there, and I don't have to    I was just talking to Steve about it.  I didn't have to have an inspection because they wouldn't let anybody in.  So I did my work and nobody ever inspected it.  And that is the way they played the game.  Also when they had excess    let's just say if, for instance, maybe this happened, suppose there was some extra chloride, just extra chemicals left over, if you wait until winter when it rains, you can put it down the storm drain.  And I am not saying that happened.  I am just saying a lot of things happened in the old days that we didn't know exactly what we were doing, but it was a lot cheaper.  You talk about cheap.  It was a lot cheaper to do it than to put a pump down in the ground to clean it.  

I can see you are trying to clean it, but back then it was a lot different in the early '70s.  So I have had my problems with that before, trying to get an inspector to inspect my work.  But that was a long time ago, and I am sure it is all changed now.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Abbott? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Its just sort of picking up where Sherry was going with the support staff or whatever you would call people who are not necessarily working with safety gear on.  Do you have    are these people informed of what is under their feet or perhaps in their air?  And is there a    is there any safety training happening?

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Hi.  I am Joe Griebstein, I am the safety manager for Bio Rad laboratories.  We have a very strong safety program.  We do a lot of industrial hygiene testing for all our people at the site.  We commonly have people wearing what we call pumps, which is an air pump, which is a filter.  And I take that sample and analyze it for chemicals.  

The most effective way that we use to make sure that we keep exposures down is we do good ventilation.  The whole building has forced ventilation.  We have very standardized systems we use that bring a lot of fresh air in the building.  Nancy mentioned that earlier in this process, a few years ago, one of the first things that DTSC asked us to do was to go back and look at what were the risks from the plume in the soil vapor that could get up to the building.  

And what we did, essentially, was do a screening assessment which you guys were talking about earlier with beryllium.  So we looked at those levels and did very conservative estimates.  And at that time we were able to use the OSHA values for workers which are different than what you would find for risk assessment values.  So the new studies we are going to do now is going to use DTSC's new methodology that they put in place since the last one.  And it is going to evaluate this at a more detailed level.  

But the screening study that we did before showed that we were okay.  And that was focused on people who spent essentially their whole day in that area.  So we do have support staff.  We do have people that come in and clean.  All those people are trained.  All those people are covered by our programs and they are all informed and trained on what is going on.  So there is something called hazard communication that all of our people get and that includes this information.  Okay.

MS. WALLIS:  So any questions or comments from the audience for Bio Rad?  Yes.  Here in the front and then the next row.  And please identify yourself for the transcriptionist.  

MS. BEGIN:  Claudette Begin from CUE, clerical union for employees at Richmond Field Station next door.  I was trying to understand, being a layperson and really kind of averse to a lot of detail on chemicals, et cetera, so I am trying to understand this.  So what is happening is there was contamination known, and so the attempt is to clean the groundwater first.  So it creates wells when you dig down and pull the water out.  Is there a certain point where the groundwater is coming from elsewhere?  Will the land sink at a certain point?  And also what does it mean in terms of land that might be    where the water might have travelled, like, over at Richmond Field Station?  Do you understand?  I am trying to understand.  You're decontaminating the site where your plant is or the company's plant that you are working to do.  So I am trying to understand what happens after you do this.  Because the water is going down the sanitary drain, so the ground water is getting pulled out.  So what ramification does that have, if any, on the height of the land over time?  But also what does it mean about the groundwater that might be shared over the ownership borders of human beings and property above ground? 

MS. BICE:  Well, I think that map that    I don't have that.  It basically shows that we are only depressing the water table by about a foot.  And    which isn't very much.  So we don't expect any settlement from that.  And by the time    by the time you get out to 22nd, between Bio Rad and the Richmond Field Station, it is back to its original level.  So we are basically just creating a little column    it is only a foot deep    on the Bio Rad site in the water table.

MS. BEGIN:  Some of the water that you are cleaning out could have been originally at Richmond Field Station or water that is under your plant could have travelled to the Richmond Field Station? 

MS. BICE:  Yes.  We could now be pumping water that, you know, a year ago was under the Richmond Field Station.  That is correct.

MS. BEGIN:  So this water, underground water, doesn't respect the property barriers. 

MS. WALLIS:  Please identify yourself.  

MS. GRANT:  Thank you.  My name is Linda Grant.  I am a citizen, have been a citizen of Richmond for many years.  I also have been a cancer patient.  So I am very concerned about things that are going on here, and have been for some time.  I guess what my concern is, I wasn't really clear about where the water ends up that you take out.  You said it goes away, but where specifically and, you know, do you sell it, like to EBMUD?  Am I drinking this water?

MS. BICE:  It is going to the sewer.  

MS. GRANT:  And does it go out to the Bay then somewhere along the way?

MS. BICE:  It goes through the sewer treatment plant and then out to the Bay. 

MS. GRANT:  All right.  Thank you very much for that clarification.

MS. WALLIS:  Yes.  

MR. SCHNEFF:  Donald Schneff.  On the third page of the environmental overview, I am a little confused on the groundwater.  The second from the bottom says "groundwater is found at a depth of 10 feet."  And then in the next one it says "Groundwater contaminated in the soil to a depth of 40 feet."

MS. BICE:  Right.  So once you hit the water table, then the soil is saturated with water as you go down.  And the contamination that we have goes from the top of the water table to a depth of about 40 feet.  

MR. SCHNEFF:  So that is continuous then?

MS. BICE:  Yes.  

MR. DOTSON:  So the ten foot is the ceiling.  Is there contamination at 2 feet, 3 feet, 4 feet? 

MS. BICE:  There is in the soil, yes.  

MR. DOTSON:  But the groundwater does not come up.  What is the lowest    the lowest or highest depth that you find in groundwater, 1 foot, 2 feet?

MS. BICE:  That is the 10 feet.  So as you dig down, the soil is dry until you get to 10 feet.  And that's where you have hit    at that point the pore spaces in the soil are filled with water.  And that's what we call groundwater.

MS. WALLIS:  We have time for another question or two.  All right.  So we thank you, our presenters from Bio Rad.  The next item on the agenda is the Toxics Committee update.  And this will be led by Dr. Esposito. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.  During the past month, the Toxics Committee reviewed and wrote on five documents which are outlined in the handout which you all have.  Four of those documents were analyzed and commented upon in conjunction with our consultants at Treadwell & Rollo and, in particular, Steve Bump, our radiological consultant at Dade Moeller Associates, and I should mention who are actually very well acquainted with the site because they were the authors of the reconstruction project for NIOSH in 2005 and have evaluated the site among several others.  

At our last meeting we talked about the very extensive work that was done to analyze samples for radioactive material, namely Uranium 238 and other uranium isotopes, Radium 226 and other radium isotopes.  The control areas for soil being Booker T. Anderson Park and at the Harborfront Tract, which is an area near the Zeneca Stauffer site.  And if you could shine the laser on those areas that would be great.  

So we have Booker T. Anderson Park as a control area for nationally occurring radioactive material in the soil.  That is    there is a lot going on at that park.

MS. PADGETT:  It jiggles.

DR. ESPOSITO:  And the control area for groundwater is not on the map.  It is the 45th Street plume, McDonald wall site.  It is up there.  So what we surmised last month was as follows.  The content of the water from the plume area control, the Harborfront Tract samples, which were taken, are virtually identical to one another.  They are within the range for groundwater taken from California.  

And in the case of the Harborfront Track there was a sample taken from a well on the Allied Propane property where the number was very high.  It was 126 picocuries per liter of Uranium 238.  But the samples are in question because several factors, including that it was probably counted for too short a period of time.  And I am going to come back to that later.  

But in general, what we found for water at the two sites was that as far as groundwater was concerned they were very close and very close to California in general.  As far as soil is concerned, what we find    we found was that the soil values for the Booker T. Anderson Park and the Harborfront Tract area, the soil samples were quite similar to one another and very similar to the values in the United States.  

Moving to the Zeneca Stauffer site, we have a number of determinations, and what was interesting about that was that early on we saw what we thought was a warm spot near one of the clarifying ponds where the value was about 2 picocuries of Radium 226 per kilogram of soil.  So we asked for that to be resampled.  

We ended up with a total of 70 samples, approximately, of soil for the Zeneca Stauffer area, and we observed that, in point of fact, the value that was sort of an outlier in the data set was completely reproducible.  It is    if you had made a plot of the values, you would have thought that it was part of a galsium distribution of counts, and there are these two counts at the high end of the distribution, but maybe not exactly in the same place.  

Which goes to the fact that this is a warm spot.  And we hope that people will keep it in mind when future excavation is done.  The oddity about it is it seems to be a lens of radioactive material in the soil, and that the samples above it and samples below that don't show that higher value.  The other thing that we noticed about samples from the Zeneca Stauffer site is that those that result from cinders, that is, the roasting of iron pyrite so that you get basically a mineral deposit, those are ones that are slightly higher.  

Now, water from the Zeneca Stauffer site was the data set we never had.  Very early on we noted we had about 34 samples for a soil content of NORM, naturally occurring radioactive material, but we didn't have water samples.  So we agreed that we would take samples from approximately nine monitoring wells.  The samples would be taken.  The responsible parties decided that they would do the analysis for normal water, something called gross alpha analysis.  

And that is, Cal-EPA allows you to measure the total content of alpha emitting radioactive material in a water sample, and if it is not more than five picocuries per liter, you don't have to distinguish among what those isotopes are.  It is a method which is less expensive than the method, for example, that was used by Weiss Associates in which they enumerated the content of each individual radio isotope or radionuclide of interest.  So that is the procedure that was used.  

But Cal-EPA also specifies that when you use that method that you need to do it at a minimal detectable activity level of a picocurie per liter.  And the reason for that is not apparent, and I am not going to derive it for you.  But there are 13 factors that go into determining the accuracy of a determination of radioactive content.  

And one of the few factors that the operator can control is the time you count the sample.  It turns out that of the 12 determinations only two of them met the criteria of having been done at a minimal detected activity of a picocurie per liter.  The other ten exceeded the Cal-EPA requirement, that is, they were higher than 1.0, and of those ten, four were in the range of about 2 to 5 picocuries per liter, 5 picocuries being the limit that you are trying to detect.  

So the recommendation by Mr. Bump, our radiological consultant, were that these ten be repeated at a target minimal activity concentration of a half a Picocurie so that you would not be overshooting the Cal requirement.  If you are going for 0.5 it is not likely that you will end up with something greater than 1.  

So we think at this point the radiological assessment of the Zeneca Stauffer site is not ready for closure.  There are those areas that water material needs to be looked at.  The other thing we wanted to do is be certain that the existence of the warm spot be memorialized in the way that worker protection will be afforded in the future.  And the workers ought to be aware of the fact that cinders tend to be radioactive, a little hotter than ordinary soil.  

Obviously we can't    we have only have 70 samples.  We have had a very extensive gamma work through with 80,000 points.  But nonetheless, prudence is always worthwhile.  Now as to the Harborfront Tract well, the problem with that determination is, first of all, this is an old well.  That sample, I imagine, was quite dirty, that is, a lot of soil and fill in it.  And it probably would be reasonable and    first of all, that value, that number has to be resolved.  I mean, if that value was anywhere near 100 picocuries per liter, something has to be done about it.  

So what we recommended, and we had a discussion in October, is that maybe three wells    three monitoring wells should be advanced in that area at different levels and then sampled so that we would know exactly what level of radioactivity is present.  And then if it is    if this value turns out to be incorrect for some reason, then we would have that information and be done with it.  

So that, I think, is the status of our thoughts on the radioactive material.  And when I finish talking about the next report that we did I am going to ask Paul Minault to speak to the interests of the Harborfront Tract community who have concerns about the fate of their property.  

The other report that we did, and this was largely carried out by Steve Linsley and his cohorts, and that was looking at the pore water sediment sampling for 2008.  Now, the problem we have been having with pore water sampling and analysis is that most of these samples that we have been looking at for two years are very saline.  And we are concerned because of the drought that we are looking at Bay water rather than pore water.  

One of the questions that we wanted to ask about the data is is it likely that the area of fill that was brought into the region is actually being recontaminated by contaminants present in the area.  And what we have found is that the metal content of the 2008 samples indicate that the new fill has been recontaminated with various metals.  

The other concern is that the volume of samples that we have been taking just haven't been enough to look at organic chloride pesticides and PCBs in the samples.  So either we have to pray for rain or for increased sample sizes.  

And you have such things as the analysis for water for selenium and it is simply not sensitive enough to give us useful analytic reporting limits.  So we would hope that DTSC and the responsible parties will take that into consideration.  So do you have any questions for me?  I would be happy to answer you.  Yes? 

MS. PADGETT:  I have a comment about one of the points Michael made about memorializing the Radium 226 warm spot.  The clarifier pond was located right about here.  And that is where the warm spot is.  And right behind where Kay is standing you can see the old clarifier pond right there.  And this is before it was cleaned up.  And so there is    there is a warm spot out there.  The 5 picocuries per liter that is the measure today and a lot of the limits that we have today continue to change.  

So our points of reference that we think are safe today we are finding aren't safe tomorrow.  Lead is a really good example, and we could go on down the list like mercury.  So knowing what we have out there in that warm spot may become a hot spot as we find out more about what Radium 226 is or isn't in the future.  So I think it is important that we have in these documents the knowledge that this area is different than the surrounding area.  

And it is    the material going down to this warm spot is    looks to be like the background, and then underneath it it looks to be like background, and then there is this cell that is warmer.  And this goes to this other point we were talking about with the VOC/PCB area in finding lead in a thousand milligrams per kilogram out there.  We just didn't sample that one spot.  We found this warm spot.  How many others are out there that we just didn't sample for?  We didn't Swiss cheese the whole 85 acres for radionuclides.  We found this one area.  So notes should be made in the document that it exists just in case in the future limits change.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would like to point out that through the responsible parties' consultants, we used the very same data.  We analyzed them in a different way.  We were comparing all of the values of the background data from the area, not for the five picocuries per soil limit.  

So I think it is important to point out that this value was interesting because    this warm spot, because the vast majority of counts are of the order of a half to 0.7 picocuries per gram of soil of any one of the radionuclides of interest.  So this is a warm spot.  Now it is clear that it is below the 5 picocuries per gram of soil, the state and federal limit.  But as far as the CAG is concerned I think we should, number one, be aware of the fact that, in general, the radioactive content of the soil in the Zeneca Stauffer site and the Harborfront Tract and the Booker T. Anderson area are close to one another and below the national average of about 0.95 picocuries per gram.  

So when you see a warm spot, you should be aware of it.  You can be happy about the other 69, but you should be concerned about this one in 70.  So that's where we are.  Steve, do you want to comment on the pore water reports?

MR. LINSLEY:  I think you addressed everything.

DR. ESPOSITO:  In that case what I would like to do is ask Paul Minault to make some comments about the interests of the Harborfront Tract community.  

MR. MINAULT:  Thank you, Michael.  It is a pleasure to be here tonight.  My name is Paul Minault.  I represent Allied Propane.  And many of you know Stan Teaderman.  He is unable to be with us tonight and asked me to speak on his behalf.  As you may also know, Allied Propane is in the Harborfront Tract.  Their property is at the base of 51st Street, right next to the former chemical evaporation pond.  

And, incidentally, I was thinking tonight, you know, we have been cleaning up our terminology.  And the Harborfront Tract is referred to as the downwind area.  I have two problems with that.  First, in the Pogo cartoon, Cousin Downwind was the skunk.  So your statement about downwind people has a certain impact on me.  And secondly, it suggests we are one direction from the site.  But actually, the site is all around us.  We really are in the Harborfront Tract as a doughnut hole with the site surrounding us.  So downwind suggests we are just one direction from the site.  But actually the site is really all directions from us.  

So again, we just want to migrate towards the clarification of our terminology.  Anyway, to continue, let me say that Allied wishes to commend DTSC for its work on this site and to thank you, Cherokee Simeon Ventures, for its support of the CAG and the work that the CAG has done and its ongoing support.  That is very much appreciated.  Obviously none of this could be happening without that.  

Four particular points we would like to make in support of the CAG and DTSC, first we support the recommendation of the CAG that DTSC include the Harborfront Tract in the feasibility study RAP for the site.  We have contaminated groundwater there.  We have some soils issues.  And we think it's very important that the site be treated comprehensively, going beyond simply the property boundaries that we see on the map which, as we learned tonight, are not respected by the contaminants.  

Secondly, we support the recommendation of the CAG to conduct further groundwater monitoring in the Harborfront Tract.  And for those who didn't catch the nuance, Allied Propane owns the well in which the very high level of contaminants or radionuclides was found.  So not only was that alarming to them on not only a personal level, but obviously if further groundwater monitoring were not conducted, they would be left basically bearing the uncertainty and the sort of risk, if you will, of these levels and their monitoring well into the future until they sell our site.  And then the future owner    and then the future owner, so this obviously is something that, for the owner of that site, Allied now and anybody in the future, is very important to clean up, whether cleaning up the doubt or cleaning up the contamination, whatever it may be to get that straightened out.  

As I mentioned, Allied is surrounded by the site.  And the Blair Landfill wraps around sort of nebulously around to our east, and we are aware that workers are proceeding there.  But we haven't seen too much immediately adjacent to our site.  And we look forward to further activity characterizing the Blair Landfill and carrying it, once again, beyond any arbitrary property boundaries to fully characterize and remediate it.  

And, fourth, we are very eager to see movement on the chemical evaporation ponds.  Of course, Allied is right next to them.  And we have had sampling take place there a year ago.  And we learned tonight that we will see those results in the next few months.  And we are very eager to see those results.  

And without trying to be redundant of what Allied presented last time, let me just say that all of this, you know, you folks are really working for the community, representing interests much greater than your own.  Allied is in a little different situation than some of you because it is a neighbor of this site.  It has a very direct, personal and immediate interest.  And that interest is really enhanced right now.  

Allied is going through a shareholder transaction which has been long delayed.  And Allied is now trying to    in the process of trying to complete this transaction, which is very difficult because the contamination that surrounds Allied's property has raised the question of what exactly is the value of Allied's property with this contamination around it.  And especially given the uncertainty of what level of cleanup will that    I should say investigation and cleanup will that contamination be subject to.  

So Stan is trying to run a business.  He is in Hawaii right now doing a construction project, trying a run a business and deal with this major shareholder issue in the face of a continuing uncertainty that keeps him awake at night.  So we are urging you, DTSC folks, to get on your horse and ride this thing to a conclusion as quickly as possible.  Thank you very much.  I will be happy to take any questions.

MS. PADGETT:  I think it's really important that we not lose sight of the Blair Landfill issue.  And that relates partly to somewhat of a piecemealing of the whole picture of the old Stauffer site.  We had Stauffer dumping on the east side of the…    this is the Harborfront Tract right in here.  And this entire area was the Blair Landfill.  And Blair Landfill has now been reduced to about one acre when it used to be, by some estimations, 30 or 40 acres where Stauffer used to do its dumping.  And trying to figure out how large that doughnut is and how much contaminants surround the Harborfront Tract is really a bigger question that DTSC is going to have to grapple with, we think, over time.  

Finding DDT at 850,000 parts per billion at the surface is, we think, pretty alarming.  And we are hoping for fences and signs around that soil.  And that is at Blair Landfill.  And we think that there needs to be more investigation as to how serious it is outside the Blair Landfill as you move east into the gun club and some of the other areas that have yet to be sampled.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much, Paul.  And I guess we can move on.

MS. WALLIS:  That concludes the Toxics Committee update.  We have now reached the public comment period.  So we will take questions and comments from the audience, and even if you have before, please identify yourself.  

MS. LICHTERMAN:  Joan Lichterman, representing members at the University of California, Richmond Field Station.  Michael, I am addressing this question to you because you mentioned the increased radioactivity in the cinders.  And I know that cinders are one of the elements that workers at Richmond Field Station are encountering all the time.  And so I wanted some clarification of the danger.  I wasn't aware of radioactivity.  So I would like to hear that.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me address that.  What we have in the case of cinders is an instance in which you have taken a sample of material, iron pyrites, and you oxidized it, basically.  And what you ended up with is the mineral content of the sample.  And, of course, it is enhanced for radionuclides relative to what you started with because carbon, nitrogen, other materials which are not uranium and radium metals have volatilized.  If you had taken a sample of wood pellets that you burned in your oven and determined the amount of Uranium 238 per kilogram of wood pellets and then scraped out your fireplace and measured it in the ash, you would find similar increase.  That is to say that you have the mineral material left behind.  

So in the case of cinders what you want to do is you want to go out and sample, I think, a reasonable amount of the material and ask is it at the slightly enhanced level of 0.7 picocuries per gram of material, which is in general in cinders or do you have something like a 3 to 5 picocuries per gram of material that we find in the operation process.  Since we know material moved about we have no idea what UC-RFS has, so it should be sampled, is my answer. 

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions, comments from the audience during the public comment period?  Dr. Rabovsky? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I have a comment or maybe a couple of questions regarding a letter, I think, that was sent to the CAG.  I am not sure, but it had to do with the beryllium on the site.  And it was a reevaluation based on the recalculated beryllium numbers.  At the very end    towards the end of the letter, a comment was made that the calculations were carried out in order to be very    as health protective as possible.  And in order to do that it was assumed that everything    all the beryllium at that site was in the form of beryllium oxide.  

I have two either questions or comments.  I don't know if there is any answers to them, but I think they should at least be dealt with in the narrative of that letter, you know, before it is assumed that that is a correct statement.  Is there any evidence or has anyone looked into the possibility that beryllium sulfate was at that site at any time?  

I ask that question because the California human health screening levels, the new ones, show that the CHHSL for beryllium sulfate is more health protective than the CHHSL for beryllium and compounds.  I didn't bring the tables with me.  I don't remember the exact numbers.  It is something like 16 versus 2.6 or 2.9.  The exact numbers do not matter. 

MS. LAPIERRE:  You got it.  That was exact, 2.9 vs. 16. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Okay.  So the question you have to establish is that beryllium sulfate was never either used or produced or emitted in any way at the site.  I think that is important I think in the original CHHSL document there is a footnote that says that if beryllium sulfate    it also said beryllium oxide at the time    is known to be at the site, then the CHHSL for that particular chemical should be used.  So that is something that should be dealt with.  

Secondly, there was an assumption, as I understood the letter, and I could be corrected if I am wrong, that the normally occurring beryllium ores and the beryllium aluminum silicates are really not toxic.  Therefore by assuming that everything is in the form of beryllium oxide, therefore you are using    you have a higher exposure to beryllium oxide.  

A very quick little literature search just on secondary documents of the International Agency Research on Cancer, a couple of other either state or federal agencies, in their discussions there are references made to primary literature that suggests there are forms of the beryllium ores, the beryllium aluminum silicates, that, at least upon inhalation, may be toxic.  

Now, I don't know the original literature on this, but, again, I think it has to be established that these ores, if they are present at the site, are, in fact, not toxic.  I think this issue also has to be dealt with before there can be a statement that is accepted that this is as health conservative or health protective as possible.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  We are at the end of the time allocated for public comment.  And so I think we will move    excuse me.

MS. PADGETT:  Can we make that an action item?  I would like to make that an action item.

MS. WALLIS:  Pleasure of the CAG?  

MS. PADGETT:  That is to, after we get the transcription back from Jean's comments, to ask DTSC to respond to the question or the multiple questions.  And that is the beryllium sulfate question.  And there were a couple of other points that are pertinent that I think we can paraphrase, and we'll ask her to help us with that, submit them to DTSC.  So that is about three weeks from now.  That's when we get our draft.  And so that will be a week before the next CAG meeting we would submit the question to DTSC.  And that doesn't give DTSC much time to turn around for the next meeting.  

MS. COOK:  That means DTSC will not respond until January.

MS. PADGETT:  We understand.  And I am    we are letting    we have got three weeks, so you have got six weeks to respond.  So that is   

MS. WALLIS:  Let me know if this is an acceptable summation.  "Post transcript ask DTSC to respond to Jean Rabovsky's two questions raised during the public comment period." 

MS. PADGETT:  It is two to three points.  I think that says it.  Does that say it for you, Jean?

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll go now to the wrap up activities, and the secretary Ms. Graves, dealing with the minutes from the last meeting.  

MS. GRAVES:  Yes.  I have handed out the hard copies to the people who didn't have email.  So is there a motion to approve the minutes for the October meeting?  

MR. ROBINSON:  So moved.  

MS. GRAVES:  All in favor to approve the minutes?  Any opposed?  None.  Motion passes.  Thank you.   

MS. WALLIS:  The next meeting of this CAG will be Thursday, December 11th at the same time, 6:30 here in the Council chambers.  Any final thoughts from the chair? 

MR. ROBINSON:  The Tox Com meeting will be Thursday, November 20th    is it, Michael    which is next week, next Thursday.  That is 7:00 p.m.  That is open to anyone, in the Shimada room right here.  The other thing is if you have your nomination form filled out and you want to give it to Carolyn, that would be good too.  That is it.  

MS. GRAVES:  One quick question.  As the Secretary I was asked if it was okay for me to give the contact information to the Harborfront representative of the CAG members.  And so I wanted to run it by the CAG if there are enough numbers here.  Is that okay?  Anybody opposed to that?

DR. ESPOSITO:  So moved.  

MS. GRAVES:  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, and good evening.  

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you and good night.  
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